Public Document Pack

AGENDA
NOTE: In the case of non-members, this agenda is for information only

Committee

-

STANDARDS COMMITTEE

Date & Time

-

Tuesday, 5th July, 2011 at 2.15 pm

Venue

-

St George's Room, Elizabeth House, Walpole
Loke, Dereham

Members of the Committee requiring further information, or with specific
questions, are asked to raise these with the appropriate officer at least two
working days before the meeting. If the information requested is available,
this will be provided, and reported to Committee.

Committee Members
Mr. M. Eveling JP (Independent)(Chairman)
Mrs. S.M. Matthews (Breckland)
Mr. B. Rayner (Parish)
Mr. G. Ridgway (Independent)

Mr. F. Sharpe (Breckland)
Mrs J. R. Smith (Parish)
Mr. A. D. Sommerville CPM (Parish)
Mr. D. Williams JP (Breckland)

Persons attending the meeting are
requested to turn off mobile telephones
Member Services
Elizabeth House, Walpole Loke,
Dereham Norfolk, NR19 1EE
Date: Friday, 24 June 2011

Please ask for Helen McAleer: Telephone (01362) 656381
e-mail: helen.mcaleer@breckland.gov.uk

Standards Committee
5 July 2011
PART A
ITEMS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC

Page(s)
herewith

WELCOME TO NEW MEMBERS
The appointment of two new Parish Council Representatives on the
Standards Committee was approved at Full Council on Thursday 23 June
2011.
Mrs Janice Smith and Mr Alex Sommerville are welcomed to the Committee.

1.

CHAIRMAN
To elect a Chairman for the meeting.

2.

MINUTES

1-3

To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 17 May 2011.
3.

APOLOGIES
To receive apologies for absence.

4.

URGENT BUSINESS
To note whether the Chairman proposes to accept any item as urgent
business pursuant to Section 100(B)(4)(b) of the Local Government Act
1972.

5.

DECLARATION OF INTEREST
Members are asked at this stage to declare any interests that they may have
in any of the following items on the agenda. The Members’ Code of Conduct
requires that declarations include the nature of the interest and whether it is a
personal or prejudicial interest.

6.

NON-MEMBERS WISHING TO ADDRESS THE MEETING
To note the names of any non-members wishing to address the meeting.

7.

APPLICATION FOR DISPENSATION

4 - 12

Report of the Monitoring Officer.
8.

FOR INFORMATION: DRAFT REPORT FROM NORFOLK COUNTY
COUNCIL ON STANDARDS
The Committee were informed previously that a draft report was being
prepared by Norfolk County Council in relation to the future of Standards and
possible joint Codes of Conduct and/or Joint Standards Committee. The
draft has now been received and is attached for information.

13 - 15

Standards Committee
5 July 2011
Page(s)
herewith

9.

LETTER TO THE LEADER ON STANDARDS ISSUES
A draft letter to the Leader, based on instructions from the last Committee,
will be tabled for consideration and approval by the Committee.

10.

ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS (STANDING ITEM)
To note items for inclusion on future agendas.

11.

NEXT MEETING
To note the date of the next meeting on 30 August 2011 at 2.15pm in the
Norfolk Room, Conference Suite, Elizabeth House, Dereham NR19 1EE.

NOTE:
For the new members of the Committee, a Standards for England DVD on
Assessment Procedures for Complaints will be shown at the close of the
meeting, although input from existing members would be welcomed.

Agenda Item 2
BRECKLAND COUNCIL
At a Meeting of the
STANDARDS COMMITTEE
Held on Tuesday, 17 May 2011 at 2.15 pm in
Anglia Room, Conference Suite, Elizabeth House, Walpole Loke, Dereham
PRESENT
Mr M.D. Eveling JP
Mr F.J. Sharpe
In Attendance
Susan Allen
John Chinnery
Helen McAleer
Vicky Thomson

Mr D.R. Williams JP

-

Standards Officer
Solicitor & Standards Consultant
Senior Committee Officer
Assistant Director - Democratic Services
Action By

31/11 CHAIRMAN (AGENDA ITEM 1)
RESOLVED that Mr Michael Eveling be elected Chairman for the
ensuing year.
32/11 MINUTES (AGENDA ITEM 2)
The Minutes of the meeting held on 29 March 2011 were confirmed as a
correct record and signed by the Chairman.
33/11 APOLOGIES (AGENDA ITEM 3)
Apologies for absence had been received from Mrs S Matthews, Mr B
Rayner and Mr G Ridgway.
34/11 URGENT BUSINESS (AGENDA ITEM 4)
None.
35/11 DECLARATION OF INTEREST (AGENDA ITEM 5)
None.
36/11 NON-MEMBERS WISHING TO ADDRESS THE MEETING (AGENDA
ITEM 6)
None.
37/11 TO CONSIDER ANY APPLICATIONS RECEIVED FOR THE PARISH
COUNCIL REPRESENTATIVES ON THIS COMMITTEE (AGENDA
ITEM 7)
Members reviewed the applications received and chose five to be invited
for interview.
The Solicitor suggested that a Sub-Committee should be appointed to
carry out the interviews. It was agreed that the Sub-Committee should
comprise one Independent Member, one District Councillor and one
1

1

Standards Committee
17 May 2011
Action By

Parish Member. Mr Eveling, Mr Williams and Mr Rayner were nominated,
with Mr Sharpe acting as substitute. A date would be arranged and
notified to Sub-Committee Members.
38/11 DISPENSATIONS GRANTED TO MAY 2011 (AGENDA ITEM 8)
A list of the Dispensations made by the Committee had been circulated to
Members.
It was AGREED to authorise the Monitoring Officer to grant applications
received for dispensations from parish councillors from the Parish
Councils where dispensations have previously been granted, for the same
purposes, to May 2015. (List of previous dispensations attached for
information.)
39/11 SCHEDULE OF MEETING DATES (AGENDA ITEM 9)
The Standards Officer advised Members that it had been very helpful to
have set dates for potential Sub-Committee meetings and asked if the
practice could continue. This was agreed.
She would circulate a table of proposed dates (usually the first Tuesday of
the month) and Members were asked to note their availability and return
the completed table to her. She would notify Members each month if the
date was not required.
40/11 LOCALISM BILL (AGENDA ITEM 10)
The Solicitor advised that very little information had been received and
there was talk of amendments but it was not known to which parts of the
Bill.
With regard to Parish Councils, one comment had been noted. It referred
to the Specified Person to maintain the Register and said that the
responsibility might remain with Monitoring Officers of District Councils.
41/11 TO CONSIDER WHAT THE LEADER SHOULD BE ASKED ON THE
FUTURE OF THE STANDARDS REGIME (AGENDA ITEM 11)
The Chairman thought that it would be useful if the Leader and Executive
were advised of the views of the Monitoring Officers and also take strong
note of the Committee’s views from the last meeting with regard to the
importance of the role of Independent Members and support for a
Voluntary Code, either just for Breckland or County wide.
Mr Williams said that the Leader had been in favour of Independent
Members in an informal discussion with him, prior to the elections. He
personally felt that the Committee should remain, especially now that the
Council had shared Management with South Holland District Council.
Mr Sharpe was concerned that there would be long term problems if the
Code was voluntary as it might apply to some areas of the District and not
to others.
It was agreed that more details were needed from the Localism Bill, but
the Chairman thought it was still important to put the Committee’s views
to the Leader.
2

2

Standards Committee
17 May 2011
Action By

The Solicitor noted that there had been talk of a draft report at the
Monitoring Officers’ meeting, but it had not been prepared yet by Norfolk
County Council. Once it was available he would bring it to a future
meeting.
The Chairman asked that it be circulated to Members in advance of the
meeting if possible.
It was RESOLVED that the Leader be provided with feedback from the
Monitoring Officers’ meeting and also be asked:
1. if he and the Executive would be in favour, in principle, of a
voluntary Code of Conduct for Breckland when the existing
national Code is withdrawn;
2. to note that the Committee strongly believes that Independent
Members can have a beneficial impact and role to play,
particularly from the perspective of the public, and whether it is
contemplated that they will be retained in a future Standards
Committee; and
3. whether there was any support for a County wide voluntary Code
of Conduct and/or joint Standards Committee.

John
Chinnery

42/11 ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS (AGENDA ITEM 12)
The following item was suggested for a future agenda:
§

Training and Standards for new Members.

43/11 NEXT MEETING (AGENDA ITEM 13)
The arrangements for the next meeting on 5 July 2011 were noted.
44/11 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC (AGENDA ITEM 14)
RESOLVED that under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local
Government Act 1972, the Press and public be excluded from the
meeting for the following item of business on the grounds that it
involves the disclosure of exempt information as defined in
paragraphs 1 and 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act.
45/11 SCHEDULE OF OUTSTANDING COMPLAINTS AND
INVESTIGATIONS (AGENDA ITEM 15)
Information was tabled on the outstanding complaints and investigations.
The Solicitor informed Members that there was a lot of work, all at
different stages of the process.
It was noted that more than one Sub-Committee meeting might be
required in June to deal with the workload.
The meeting closed at 2.42 pm
CHAIRMAN
3

3

Agenda Item 7

BRECKLAND COUNCIL
Report of the Monitoring Officer to the
STANDARDS COMMITTEE – 5th July, 2011
APPLICATION FOR DISPENSATIONS
1.

Purpose of Report

1.1

The Committee is asked to consider the applications for dispensations from the parish
councils detailed at Appendix A attached.

2.

Recommendations
It is recommended that the Committee:

2.1

Grants dispensations to all of the named individuals to speak and vote in accordance
with Option 3.3.2 to ensure the smooth running of the parish councils listed at
Appendix A.
Note: In preparing this report, due regard has been had to equality of opportunity,
human rights, prevention of crime and disorder, environmental and risk management
considerations as appropriate. Relevant officers have been consulted in relation to any
legal, financial or human resources implications and comments received are reflected in
the report.

3.

Information, Issues and Options

3.1

Background

3.1.1

Regulations came into force on 15th June, 2009 entitled The Standards Committee
(Further Provisions) (England) Regulations 2009 (S.I. 2009 No. 1255).

3.1.2

These Regulations prescribe the circumstances in which the Standards Committee
may grant dispensations to Breckland members and parish and town councillors in
the Breckland area. If a member acts in accordance with the grant of such a
dispensation, any participation in business prohibited by the mandatory provisions of
the Model Codes of Conduct is not a failure to comply with the authority’s Code.
These Regulations refer to the circumstance where a member, or more usually a
number of members, finds they are in a position where they have to declare a
prejudicial interest under the Code of Conduct and leave the room. In the
circumstances described in the Regulations, those members might be able to obtain
a dispensation (i.e. permission) from a Standards Committee to stay in the meeting
after declaring the interest and either just speak, or speak and vote according to any
dispensation granted.

3.1.3

The Regulations state that a Standards Committee may grant a dispensation to a
member or co-opted member of an authority in the following circumstances:
a)

because the number of members of the authority prohibited from voting on
the business of the authority a meeting exceeds 50% of those members that,
but for the granting of any dispensations relating to that business, would
otherwise be entitled to vote on that business; or

4

b)

the number of members prohibited from voting on the business of the
authority at a meeting would, but for the granting of any dispensations relating
to that business, upset the political balance of that meeting to such an extent
as to prejudice the outcome of the voting in that meeting.

3.2

Issues

3.2.1

The Clerks to the following Parish Councils have sent in a request for a dispensation
on behalf of the named members in connection with the charities mentioned.

Parish Council
Horningtoft
Council

Number
on Parish Councillors
Parish Council
Andrew Hill
Graham Drew
Pauline Chapman
Tracey Hawke
Ivan Baker

Former
Surveyors
Charity

Timothy Birt
Ann Bowyer
Phillip Duigan
Michael Fanthorpe
Linda Goreham
Robin Goreham
Stuart Green
Robert Hambidge
Kate Millbank
Linda Monument
Tom Monument
Haydn Rogers

Bishop
Bonner’s
Cottage Charity

Weasenham
Saint 7
Peter Parish Council

Mr. P. Davies
Mr. B. Blower
Mr. R. Bowyer
Mrs. J. Grimwood
Mr. K. Grimwood
Mrs. L. Parke
Mrs. I Sincock

Former
Surveyors
Charity

Weasenham
Saint 7
Peter Parish Council

Mrs. J. Grimwood
Mr. K. Grimwood
Mrs. L. Parke
Mrs. I Sincock

Weasenham
Recreation
Charity

Dereham
Council

3.2.2

Parish 5

Charity

Town 12

Recreation
Charity
Headborough
Charity

Highway
Land

Ground
Estate

Highway
Land

Ground

The dispensation sought is to speak and vote. However, the Committee do not have
to grant dispensations for both, and can decide not to grant the request at all. The
Regulations state that the Committee must decide whether it is “appropriate” to grant
the request. The Standards for England Guidance states:
“Clearly there is a difference between being eligible to apply for
a dispensation and it being appropriate for that dispensation to
be granted. The committee will need to balance the prejudicial
interest of the member seeking the dispensation to vote on an
item of business, against the potential effect on the outcome of
the vote if the member is unable to do so.”

5

3.3

Options

3.3.1

To refuse to grant dispensations to the named parish councillors in the table at 3.2.1

3.3.2

To grant a dispensation to the named parish councillors in the table at 3.2.1.

3.4

Reasons for Recommendation(s)

3.4.1

To ensure that the parish councils mentioned at 3.2.1 can make decisions on matters
regarding the charities mentioned, it is recommended that Option 3.3.2 above is
agreed.

4.

Risk and Financial Implications

4.1

Risk

4.1.1

I have completed the Risk Management questionnaire and this report does not
require a risk assessment because the issues covered by the recommendations are
not significant in terms of risk.

4.2

Financial

4.2.1

None.

5.

Legal Implications

5.1

None.

6.

Other Implications
a)

Equalities: There are no Equalities implications.

b)

Section 17, Crime & Disorder Act 1998: None

c)

Section 40, Natural Environment & Rural Communities Act 2006: None

d)

Human Resources: None

e)

Human Rights: None.

f)

Other: [e.g. Children’s Act 2004] None

7.

Alignment to Council Priorities

7.1

Your Council, Your Services:
a)

Strengthen community consultation and involvement.

b)

Involve people in the design and delivery of services which meet their needs.

8.

Ward/Community Affected

8.1

Horningtoft Parish Council, Dereham Town Council, Weasenham St. Peter Parish
Council.

Background Papers

6

None
Lead Contact Officer:
Name/Post: Susan Allen – Standards Officer
Telephone: 01362 656395
Email: sue.allen@breckland.gov.uk
Key Decision Status (Executive Decisions only):
Non-Key decision and not on Forward Plan
Appendices attached to this report:
Appendix A – schedule of dispensationsr
Appendix B -Letters from the Clerks to Horingtoft Parish Council, Dereham Town Council,
Weasenham St. Peter Parish Council.

7

8

9

10

11

12

Agenda Item 8
REPORT TO

COUNCIL

REPORT OF MONITORING OFFICER
SUMMARY
1.

This Report informs Members of the pending abolition of the current
Standards regime and asks Members to consider whether they would wish in
principle to adopt a new Code of Conduct for Members to be put in place
when the current Standards regime is abolished.

Recommendation
2.

Members are asked to consider whether they might wish to resolve in principle
to adopt a voluntary Code of Conduct when the Localism Act 2011 comes into
force and to ask the Monitoring Officer to consider and advise in due course
as to the contents of a new voluntary Code.

Background
3.

4.

The Standards regime currently in place for Local Authorities was introduced
by the Local Government Act 2000 implementing recommendations of the
Nolan Committee on Standards in Public Life. The key features of the current
regime are:•

A mandatory Code of Conduct to be adopted by each Local Authority.

•

A regulatory body "Standards For England".

•

A mandatory Standards Committee for each Authority with independent
representation.

•

An elaborate procedural framework for enforcement of the regime.

•

A range of statutory sanctions for breach of the Code.

It should be recalled that prior to the 2000 Act provisions there was a preexisting "National Code of Local Government Conduct" which was enforced by
the Local Government Ombudsman (albeit that the Ombudsman only had
power to impose sanctions against the Authority, not against individual
Members) and by Local Authorities themselves. The High Court case of
Lashley v Broadland District Council established that all Local Authorities had
the power to establish Standards Committees in order to promote and
maintain Standards and Conduct of elected Members.

Localism Bill 2011
5.

This Bill contains provisions which will sweep away all the features of the
current Standards regime as summarised above. The implications of this are:-

13

•

There will be no central or national apparatus for Standards - Standards
For England will be abolished and all Standards issues will be dealt with
at local level.

•

Although Local Authorities will be under a duty to promote and maintain
high standards of conduct by their Members they will not be obliged to
have a Standards Committee. If they choose to do so, nevertheless, in
accordance with the Lashley decision noted above, there is scope for
Local Authorities to constitute such Committees. If Members were not
minded to appoint a Standards Committee, the task of overseeing
Standards issues could conceivably be allocated to another existing
Committee.

•

Local Authorities may, if they wish, adopt a Code of Conduct. Although
any new Code may be based upon their current Code, the current Code
will not itself continue in existence. Local Authorities must positively
address the issue of whether and what Code they would like to see in
place.

•

The statutory sanctions for breach of the Code will be abolished.
Suspension or disqualification will thus no longer be an option for Local
Authorities to impose by way of sanction on those Members who have
been found to be in breach of the Code. Sanctions under the new
regime will likely include censure, and removal of defaulting Councillors
from membership of Committees. [Local Authorities may also have the
power to cease payment of Members' allowances to defaulting
Members.]

•

The Bill proposes to give powers to the Secretary of State to make
provision for the disclosure and registration of Members' interests and
for Members to disclose those interests in relevant circumstances.
Regulations may include sanctions on Members for failing to comply
with this duty but such sanctions may not include suspension or
disqualification. The Bill will create a criminal offence of failing to
register or to disclose a financial interest and upon conviction a Court
may disqualify the convicted person from being or becoming a Member
of the Authority for a period of up to five years.

•

Regulations will make provision for transitional arrangements to allow
for Standards cases going through the "old" system.

A Voluntary Code of Conduct
6.

Members are asked to consider whether they would like, in principle, to have a
Code of Conduct for Members under the Localism Act. As noted above, there
is a duty on Local Authorities to promote and maintain high standards of
conduct and the adoption of a Code might be the most straight forward means
of fulfilling that duty. There might now be a public expectation that Local
Authorities will have a Code. It may be seen as a commitment to the
strengthening of confidence in local democracy.

14

7.

A decision in principle to have a Code of Conduct would not imply any
commitment to a Standards Committee. As noted earlier, the Bill makes no
mention of Standards Committees and the Authority would have to consider
whether it wished to have a Standards Committee and what powers such a
Committee might have conferred upon it.

8.

The Monitoring Officers for the various Authorities in Norfolk have given
thought to the possibility of a "Norfolk Code". If the Norfolk Authorities were
open to the idea of Voluntary Codes then a form of Code acceptable to all
Authorities for use within the County might have advantages. Members who
were elected to more than one Authority would only have to consider one
Code whilst they conducted the business of each Authority.

15

